
 

 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Wednesday 7 May 2025 
6.30 pm 

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Ian Wingfield (Chair) 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Suzanne Abachor 
Councillor Cassandra Brown 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Sam Foster 
Councillor Laura Johnson 
Councillor Richard Leeming 
Councillor Margy Newens 
Councillor Catherine Rose 
Councillor Martin Seaton 
Martin Brecknell (Co-opted member) 
Jonathan Clay (Co-opted member) 
Marcin Jagodzinski (Co-opted member) 
 

Councillor Rachel Bentley 
Councillor Maggie Browning 
Councillor Sunil Chopra 
Councillor Sabina Emmanuel 
Councillor Barrie Hargrove 
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Esme Hicks 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Jane Salmon 
Councillor Michael Situ 
Councillor Cleo Soanes 
 

 

 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this 
agenda as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these 
reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your 
children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a 
claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers or any other requirements for this meeting, 
please contact the person below. 

Contact 
 on 020 7525 0496  or email: amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk    

Open Agenda



 

 
 

 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Althea Loderick 
Chief Executive 
Date: 28 April 2025 
 

 
 



 

 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Wednesday 7 May 2025 
6.30 pm 

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 

 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an 
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

1 - 12 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 
31 March 2025. 
 

 

5. DELIVERING SOUTHWARK 2030 
 

 

 To receive a report from Rhona Cadenhead, Assistant Chief 
Executive of Strategy & Communities on delivering Southwark 
2030– Council Delivery Plan and Q3 2024/25 performance. (To 
follow) 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

6. CABINET SCRUTINY PROTOCOL 
 

13 - 21 

 To receive the Cabinet Scrutiny Protocol from Everton Roberts, 
Head of Scrutiny. 
 

 

7. WORK PROGRAMME 
 

22 - 31 

 To note the work programme as at 7 May 2025. 
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT 
THE START OF THE MEETING. 
 

 

 
Date:  28 April 2025 
 
 



1 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on 
Monday 31 March 2025 at 6.30 pm at Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 
Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH  
 

 

PRESENT: Councillor Ian Wingfield (Chair) 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Suzanne Abachor 
Councillor Cassandra Brown 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Sam Foster 
Councillor Laura Johnson 
Councillor Richard Leeming 
Councillor Margy Newens 
Councillor Catherine Rose 
Jonathan Clay (Co-opted member) 
 
 

OTHER 
MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 
 

  
Councillor Kieron Williams 
Councillor Sarah King 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

  
Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Martin Seaton and Martin 
Brecknell (Co-opted member). 
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Richard Leeming. 
 
 
 
 
 

Open Agenda
1

Agenda Item 4



2 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS 
URGENT  

 

 The Chair informed the committee that there were no late items. 
 
Supplemental Agenda No.1 contains reports on Item 5. Electrical Testing in 
Council Homes and Item 6. Governance and Oversight of Housing Services 
 
Supplemental Agenda No.2 contains Minutes of the meetings held on 
27 November 2024. 
 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 There were no disclosures of interests or dispensations. 
 

4. MINUTES  
 

 The Minutes of the meetings held on 27 November 2024 and 8 January 2025 were 
approved as a correct record. 
 

5. ELECTRICAL TESTING IN COUNCIL HOMES  
 

 The committee first heard from Cllr Sarah King, Cabinet Member for Council 
Homes and Hakeem Osinaike, Strategic Director for Housing on the following 
points of discussion. 
 

 Self-referral to regulator based on earlier findings of the lack of electrical 
testing and smoke alarms; Council repairs and external contractors 
appointed to ensure timelines for electrical safety testing are being met. 

 Challenges around procurement of contractors and subsequent delivery of 
electrical testing; Prioritising electrical testing in higher risk tower blocks and 
elderly vulnerable tenants and tenants who have concerns 

 Existing contractors increase their capacity form May 2025 and procurement 
of two additional contractors to support them; target is to reach compliance 
by March 2026 and aiming to access every council home. 

 
The Chair then clarified para.14 of the report; 24256 homes that need electrical 
testing is a lower starting point; this is to accommodate the new standards of 
testing in already tested homes. In addition, the Chair explained that it’s also 
necessary to prioritise elderly vulnerable people, factoring in their individual 
vulnerabilities. 
 
 
 

2



3 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

The committee then asked the following questions 
 

 Process for electrical testing in a home, tolerance and contingency within 
this program and further electrical work as an outcome of the inspection; 
Communication with residents on the plans for electrical times including 
lead time and completion. 

 Detection of hidden defects in wiring especially around kitchen appliances; 
Clarification on data issues - 50% of 34,000 homes equated to 17,000 
homes, the lower starting point of 24,000 homes equates to 73%. 

 General trends in the outcomes of electrical testing currently being carried 
out; Timeline for electrical testing of street properties who have not raised 
concerns but received a letter from the council six months prior.  

 
Hakeem explained to the committee that the possible outcomes of electrical testing 
in homes can range from satisfactory and compliant to urgent and non-urgent work 
and will be prioritised accordingly. The council has an agreement with contractors 
that urgent work in a home will be done immediately while on site. Non-urgent work 
will be prioritised either by Housing Services Repair programme or the planned 
maintenance work. Furthermore, residents have received a letter explaining the 
process, the time required and the personnel that would visit their homes who 
would further explain any additional work that needs to be carried out. Electrical 
testing is done in a five-year cycle; however, the council intends to start the testing 
earlier to spread out the workload and as a result it’s possible that some homes 
might have their electrical testing before the five-year timeline for electrical testing 
in their home ends. 
 
Cllr King explained to the committee that the internal council data indicates that 
some form of electrical safety testing has taken place in 50% of council homes, 
however these properties might not necessarily have an electrical safety test 
certificate. The council in conjunction with the regulator aims to cover all properties 
that are lacking in the new standards of compliance also ensuring the data is up to 
date and more accurate and complete. Multiple households living in the same 
block will be given higher priority for electrical testing.  
 
Hakeem informed the committee that the council’s aim to is to reach compliance by 
March 2026 and the contractors have estimated that from May 2025 they should 
be able to complete 2800 homes every month, in addition two additional 
contractors will start testing in the summer months and we should be reaching all 
properties soon, but there needs to be agreement on prioritisation. Budget 
allocation for the delivery of testing timelines seems to be on track now and no 
major concerns have been raised with regards to achieving the targets. 
 
The committee then asked further questions on the following themes 
 

 Electrical Installation Condition Report (EICR) structures for preventing 
failures, £250m budget allocations 

 Stock condition survey and identifying previously un-discovered vulnerable 
people post pandemic through annual tenancy checks 

3



4 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

 Historical context - Housing Improvement Board report from November 
2022 and delay in addressing issues leading to current conditions of EICR 
in homes; Assurances of meeting the March 2025 target for completion to 
residents; Informing the regulator of lower starting point in electrical testing; 
Contingency plan in case target is missed and assurances to residents on 
safety of their homes 

 
The committee learnt form Cllr King that the Electrical Safety Audit work carried out 
by the council a year ago led the council to make a self-referral to the Social 
Housing regulator. The stock condition survey work carried out by the council 
indicated the need to increase the electrical testing work, the regulator agreed with 
steps the council had taken to undertake this work. The council is working with the 
regulator in addressing the concerns in the judgement of the council as a social 
landlord, also identifying areas that have not been picked up in the audit by the 
regulator. 
 
Hakeem explained to the committee that the housing team is also working on 
analysing the root cause of failures in electrical testing to futureproof this process. 
The stock condition survey being carried out is extensive and covers people living 
in these properties, not just building structures and the council is also working with 
partners in Public Health and Adult Social Care.  
 
Cllr King further explained that the council staff such as officers and estate 
managers are working closely to raise communal repairs issues and identifying 
vulnerable, and this has been successful recently.  
 
Hakeem informed the committee, as Cllr King mentioned earlier that the computer 
systems the council used to record electrical safety tests indicate a much higher 
number of homes where tests have been conducted, however officers are not 
counting those properties where we haven’t been able to locate the EICR 
certificates. Furthermore, this lower starting point is to give the council complete 
data assurance and setting higher standards in electrical testing. The regulator for 
social housing is provided regular updates on issues (EICR) identified by them and 
the issues identified by the council, the regulator agrees that the council is 
progressing in the right direction in this regard. The system that the council is using 
for electrical safety is called True Compliance where one cannot circumvent the 
electrical safety test certificate, and this would ensure that homes are compliant. 
The council is doing root cause analysis of past failures in electrical testing. 
 
Cllr King explained to the committee that the council initially wrote to residents on 
electrical testing and currently using the tenant engagement structure such as 
repairs improvement board to communicate monthly with residents. The council is 
also setting up a Housing Management Board to effectively communicate with 
tenants and learn about their experiences, to provide progress reports and provide 
assurances here onwards.  
 
 

4



5 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

6. GOVERNANCE AND OVERSIGHT OF HOUSING SERVICES  
 

 The committee then heard from Cllr King and Hakeem on the following topics 
 

 Significant amount of work in the housing department to forensically 
understand the work needed to deliver good quality housing for residents; 
New governance procedures, Housing Oversight Board chaired by the 
leader of the council Cllr Kieron Williams. 

 Lead Member (Cllr King) briefings - progress reports, housing investment 
plan, housing regulator meetings, engagement with tenants ensuring 
transparency. 

 New appointments- Strategic Director of Housing, Director of Housing 
Needs, Director of Housing Repairs; Increase in skills and expertise within 
the housing department and the senior team. 

 The Corporate Management Team (CMT) including the Chief Executive 
have expressed that the issues faced within the housing department and its 
ownership lies with the entire council and are looking to work together 
holistically to address these issues. The safety, satisfaction and assurance 
to our residents is of utmost importance to the council. 
 

The Chair addressed the meeting expressing that the council needs to work 
together to rectify these issues, it’s important that the council deliver for our 
residents, tenants and leaseholders. Furthermore, there needs to be 
acknowledgement of the things that have gone wrong within housing including but 
not limited to Canada Estate. Devion Mansions and other housing estates. There 
also needs to be a deep dive into investigating the failures within housing. 
The committee then asked further questions on the following themes 
 

 Culture and the lack of political accountability in previous governance 
structures; Completion of fire safety remedial actions report due to Cabinet 
in March 2025; Political accountability for future failings in actions 
recommended by regulator social housing; Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) for housing improvement plan. 
 

The committee heard from Hakeem that all the fire safety remedial actions have 
not been completed yet, due to the lead time of 12 weeks for contractors; 
measuring different size fire safety doors, manufacturing doors and then agreeing 
a date with residents for installation. 
 
Cllr King informed the committee that the housing investment and improvement 
plan has identified officers operationally responsible for specific areas, however the 
vast majority of political accountability lies mainly with herself, Cllr Stephanie Cryan 
for her Cabinet Member role in Finance and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 
In addition, the Housing Oversight Board chaired by Cllr Kieron Williams are also 
politically accountable. Furthermore, Cllr Helen Dennis in her Cabinet Member role 
for New Homes. The Housing Improvement Plan has been put together by herself 
and senior officers to address these issues, however there could be challenges in 

5



6 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

progress of these plans such as not being able to access tenant properties to carry 
out these tests, due to unavailability of residents and other factors. 
 
In addition, Cllr King explained to the committee that she felt it was more important 
to prioritise putting a plan in place to address these issues, versus carrying out a 
root cause analysis which investigates the past. In terms of past failings there has 
been resident engagement to investigate the cause within Major Works 
programmes. Furthermore, work with the independent consultant (Pellings) and the 
task and finish group is still ongoing. The learnings from failings at Consort Estate 
being at an early stage in its major work programme has benefitted from a saving 
of £5m by putting in place better contractual arrangements. There also challenges 
within the technology used to manage housing data within the council and in 
general across the sector. Tech companies historically have underinvested in 
housing solutions, but this is changing with regulations being put on private and 
social landlords. The council is catching up and learning about these issues live 
while working on these issues. 
 
The committee heard from Cllr King that tenant satisfaction measures survey are 
the best way to measure performance in housing improvement, this year’s tenant 
satisfaction measures have been received and is due to be published in June 
2025, which would show an improvement in all areas, especially in areas of 
housing safety. However, this is down to communicating with residents on housing 
safety rather than the progress of the overall safety work being carried out. 
Housing complaints, enquiries and timeliness of repairs are all important KPIs. 
Electrical Safety Testing and Stock Condition Surveys will take a significant 
amount of time to complete given the high number of council homes in Southwark.  
 
Hakeem explained to the committee that it’s difficult to give the committee a 
definitive date on the report for the root cause analysis as housing services are 
wide in range such as compliance, repairs and homelessness, and these services 
are also large in scale. 
 
The Committee then asked further questions on the following points of discussion 
 

 Key recommendations to help the housing improvement plan achieve its 
goals in the wider context of the support from other council departments 

 Lead Member Briefing process to include housing stock issues from estate 
inspections, whistle-blowers, members enquiries, call centre logs and 
cabinet member questions. Furthermore, how this factor into the Housing 
Oversight Board. 
 

Cllr King informed the committee that there have been key improvements in areas 
of resident and tenant engagement with help of experts from other council 
departments. A significant hurdle is the financial aspect of housing and the HRA 
which could benefit from more funding and would ensure stock condition survey 
targets are met sooner.  
 
Hakeem explained to the committee that there has been exceptional support from 

6



7 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

the CMT, Chief Executive and Cabinet Member, Cllr King. In addition, the Resident 
Engagement Strategy is due to got out to consultation in April 2025. 
 

7. CABINET/SENIOR MANAGEMENT STRATEGIC RESPONSIBILITY  
 

 The committee then heard from Cllr Kieron Williams, Leader of the Council and 
Althea Loderick, Chief Executive on Cabinet/Senior Management Strategic 
Responsibility covering the following topics 
 

 Post pandemic (2022) restoring council services; New Chief Executive May 
2022; Independent peer review 2023 overall council services good 
especially Adults & Children Services, Community Safety, Economic 
Development, New Council Homes; Ofsted rating good for schools, youth 
offending services rated as good. 

 Home Care satisfaction from mid-50% to mid-90%; Southwark biggest 
creator of Youth Apprenticeships in London; Reduction of 19% in number of 
children coming into care; Number of children in youth offending services 
reduced by 18%. 

 Areas of Improvement- improving our offer to tenants and leaseholders; 
Detailed review of our housing services- audits; Communication to residents 
on improving our housing services in response to issues highlighted in 
audits; Work plan to look after council homes- New Strategic Director for 
Housing; New Cabinet Member for Council Homes working with officers on 
housing improvement plan. 

 Self- referral to Housing regulator on electrical testing, smoke alarms and 
fire risk assessments; Housing regulator national framework helpful to 
politicians to ask the right questions about council housing services; C3 
rating from regulator, however regulator confident in our plans to deliver the 
improvement needed. 

 £250m to improve housing services especially housing repairs service, 
improving estates, new council homes and customer service; Building 
cabinet for strong leadership and Chief Executive building Senior officer 
team. 

 Commending the work done by OSC and ward councillors for their 
respective wards and its residents; Council affected by austerity and now 
rebuilding some back-office checking services. 

 Essential components of well-run and successful organisations, large 
organisations need clarity in the operating context, operating model, staff 
role & responsibilities, powers through scheme of management, budget 
delegation, decision making powers; Clarity in hierarchies and structures on 
supervision and managing staff; Performance management systems for 
individuals, team, departments and organisation including risks, compliance, 
audits etc. 

 Huge demands on the housing service in day-to-day workload coupled with 
backlog form post-covid era, issue with skills, tools and ability to undertake 
tasks, limited financial resources (HRA); Structures that have now been put 
in place will provide residents assurance of the delivery of housing services. 

7



8 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

 Geo-political issues have a knock-on effect on local government services; 
Funding settlement over 2-3 years will create financial challenges; Local 
Government re-organisation in London to the Mayoral model will have an 
impact on Local Government Authorities; Children’s Services reform with a 
focus on early help; Major Local and National NHS Reform; Southwark 
Council need to have an operating model that proactively respond and deal 
with these changes. 

 One council working to ensure more efficient use of resources and moving 
away from the federated model of organising and delivering services; 
Reviewing procurement systems to make it a stronger procurement model; 
Strategy and Communities delivering transformation and change. 
 

The committee then asked questions on the following points 
 

 Alternate priorities and choices historically that could have resulted in a 
better outcome for housing services; More political will and focus on 
governance of housing services historically. 

 Political administration holding officers accountable for the advice on the 
course of action. 

 Communication and Engagement with residents by the council officers 
mainly good overall, issues arise when the delivery of services are provided 
by intermediaries mainly contractors (major repair works) initiating works 
without any engagement with residents. 

 Privatisation of property and commercial development to the north of the 
borough and building social housing towards the south where land prices 
are cheaper, causing disproportionate redistribution of wealth in the 
borough. 

 
The committee heard from Cllr Williams that during the pandemic it was absolutely 
the right choice to support residents through the pandemic, post pandemic the 
focus was to improve the housing repairs services. Housing services were 
reviewed through the audits, and failings were identified. Financial constraints due 
to austerity measures meant that three quarters of councils across the country had 
either had to reduce maintenance of their council homes or cut back on building 
new homes or sell-off homes. Southwark is increasing the housing repairs service 
and building new homes. There are examples housing department working hard to 
improve lives of residents, this has been captured in a documentary on work done 
by frontline staff in Southwark. 
 
Cllr Williams explained to the committee that the housing Commission held in 2012 
gave us three options; focus on maintaining homes or focus on making homes 
better and building more homes, or less focus on maintaining home and building 
maximum number of homes. The council and the leadership chose the third option 
to build maximum number of new homes, this decision was clearly important 
looking at the current housing waiting list of 18,0000 homes needed.  
Althea informed the committee that the political direction sets the policy, and the 
operation is directed by officers who advise politicians on the viable course of 
action. Council officers are expected to provide the political leadership accurate 

8



9 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

insight into the delivery of services. 
 
The committee heard from Cllr Williams that it’s important for politicians in 
leadership roles to have channels and avenues of gaining insight into delivery of 
services through direct briefing from officers, access to audits, independent 
assessments from regulator, and resident feedback by engaging with people and 
communities on delivery and experience of services. All these channels together 
but especially internal audits give the leadership the answers to identify failings in 
the housing service at Southwark.  
 
The Chair expressed to the committee that we have inputs from residents at 
various levels and forums which are being incorporated into the new governance 
structure as mentioned by Cllr King. The housing commission and its 
recommendations had come from a great wealth of information from independent 
regulators and partners not connected to Southwark in anyway. 
 
Cllr Williams explained to the committee there is no deliberate plan to privatise 
properties and commercial development to the north of the borough. The strategy 
is to obtain maximum value in building homes for our residents on land owned by 
the council. Residents and ward councillors have been asked to help identify sites 
across the borough, however it is true that the council owns more land in the 
middle of the borough where we have more council housing and estates. Areas 
such as Old Kent Road have been purchased by the council as they are less 
dense and more opportunity for buy to build. The council is building houses across 
the borough and even up near the riverfronts. 
The committee heard from Althea that the council is working on strengthening the 
procurement model and stronger contract management in some parts of the 
borough. Better communication and engagement with residents on major works 
being undertaken, is a core focus area within the housing improvement plan led by 
Cllr King. 
 
The committee then asked further questions on the following themes 
 

 Southwark being a member-led council, the accountability of the failings in 
the housing service lies with Cabinet members as well as officers 

 Southwark’s role in lobbying the government for the delivery of 1.5m homes 
nationally, stating lack of powers and finances for Southwark’s housing 
delivery plan. 

 Principles of values and cultures of the council and its adoption within the 
council workforce with regards to resident experience on resolution of 
issues 

 
Cllr Williams informed the committee that issues within the housing services were 
first uncovered by internal review and audit which was a political ask by OSC 
members, Cabinet members and ward councillors who raised it politically.  The 
self-referral to the regulator revealed the same findings already uncovered by the 
council. Cabinet members had asked very searching questions but weren’t given 
all details and information at that time. This resulted in substantial changes in the 

9



10 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

governance and oversight of safety & regulatory requirements. Southwark council 
will receive an extra £2.8bn for affordable housing from the government. The 
council needs to continue to lobby the government for more funding. The council 
housing summit held recently brought together many councils, residents and 
professional groups to collectively lobby the government for more funding. 
 
Althea explained to the committee that since she had taken up her role, the focus 
has always been getting out there in the community and engaging with residents, 
the feedback gathered from residents has led to the development of the one 
council approach. The values that are being developed are following a bottom-up 
approach based on resident feedback and the pre-existing council values already 
been set. The council is also working to ensure every staff member has got clarity 
of their role in the council. One of the key principles of Southwark 2030 strategy is 
how the council works with our place and our people. 
 
The committee then heard from Cllr Williams that there was a very clear approach 
in the job advert/recruitment of senior officers ensuring that we bring in people with 
the ethos of the council values. Cabinet members are also approaching their 
respective areas with questions on how our services are delivering the needs of 
our residents, putting residents first. 
 
The Committee then asked further questions on the following points 
 

 Technology and skills issues with the Housing customer management 
systems; Partnerships with external organisations to address the challenges 
in technology 

 Climate emergency funding of £3.2b, understanding of the climate 
emergency measures such as carbon footprint within the council, achieving 
ambitions of climate emergency 

 
Cllr Williams informed the committee that recruiting officers with skills in operating 
the technology is difficult as other organisations offer higher pay. There is on-going 
work in developing a much more resilient system for recording customer data. 
Partnership working is a part of the Southwark 2030 strategy where we work with 
NHS, Urban Health and the Police whilst looking at the borough holistically. 
 
Althea explained to the commission that there is on-going work to reprocure the 
Enterprise Resourcing Platform, it’s important for the council to have a base level 
platform to understand the types of data, how it’s held and managed. This would 
also provide a base from where the council could access technology capital, social 
capital, including digital innovation and AI. 
 
The committee then heard from Cllr Williams that there is a clear political direction 
when it comes to the climate emergency aims of the council; departments such as 
the leisure services are looking at ways to reduce the carbon footprint, being the 
biggest emitters with regards to swimming pools etc. However, there is more work 
to be done in other areas of the council. 
 

10



11 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

Althea informed the committee that more work needs to be done in distilling the 
council’s commitment to climate emergency amongst departments, where-in it 
becomes an integrated part of every work process and practice in the council. 
 
The committee then heard a summary of the discussions at this meeting 
 

 On-going root cause assessment of Housing service issues, what went 
wrong, when and how 

 Structural changes to housing governance; fortified elements of the 
governance structure- strategic housing oversight board with reports from 
Housing DMTs 

 Overload on housing demand with scale of the housing issue combined with 
factors such post-covid backlog 

 Overreliance on central structures, transformation needed around central 
structures 

 Member services and casework, resident engagement and communication 

 All the above-mentioned areas coming together in a one council approach. 

 Previously political oversight on housing issues were only raised when 
residents mobilised and were championed by ward councillors 

 
Cllr Williams explained to the committee that extra attention and governance has 
now been put in place for housing, which is the number one priority for the council. 
The scale of housing issues in Southwark makes it a priority for the IT team, HR 
Team, Call Centre Team, Finance team etc. being a collective task. Customer 
service and handling complaints is important, but its also crucial to learn from 
those complaints to make the service better. The council needs to have good 
engagement structures with residents to show changes made because of issues 
that were raised. 
 
The committee then heard from Althea that having good engagement structures is 
important and having governance through oversight boards is key to that process. 
However, in response to the issues raised at meetings, there needs to be clear 
objectives for a resolution and working towards that change. Furthermore, its also 
crucial that we find a balance between focusing on housing related issues and 
maintaining and improving other core council services. 
 
Cllr Williams informed the committee that the housing regulator inspections have 
revealed that the biggest social landlords in the country are in a very similar 
position to Southwark. The challenges in the housing repairs sector are on an 
enormous scale, however there is strong determination across the country to 
change this. There are on-going talks with the Ministry of Housing, Communities 
and Local Government (MHCLG) to setup a network for Directors of Housing like 
the Children’s and Adults Services network which led to a national revolution in the 
sector. 
 
The Chair summarised the meeting by expressing that the issues, comments and 
questions raised at this meeting reflect the resident experiences; and the focus of 
this committee, senior officers and cabinet members is to improve trust and 

11



12 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Monday 31 March 2025 
 

confidence in the council in the community. There are areas of improvement within 
the overall council services, however there a lot of achievements to be proud of 
despite the financial hardships faced. 
 

8. WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 Proposed agenda items for upcoming meeting: 7 May 2025 
 

 Canada Estate/ Devon Mansions Final Report. 

 Delivering Southwark 2030 Strategy- Council Ambitions and Commitments. 

 Climate Chage Strategy and Performance. 

 Refresh the procurement framework to deliver Southwark 2030 strategy. 
 

 Meeting ended at 9:15 pm. 
 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 

12



 

 
 

1 

 

Meeting Name: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 
 

7 May 2025 

Report title: 
 

Cabinet Scrutiny Protocol 

Ward(s) or groups affected: 
 

 

Classification: Open 
 

Reason for lateness (if 
applicable):  
 

N/a 

From: 
 

Head of Scrutiny 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That overview and scrutiny committee adopt the cabinet scrutiny protocol 

(attached as appendix 1). 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 
2. The overview and scrutiny committee agreed the Centre for Governance and 

Scrutiny (CfGS) Scrutiny Improvement Review recommendations at its meeting 
in October 2023.  Two recommendations/enhancements arising from the 
scrutiny improvement review were: 
 

 Recommendation 1 - strengthen collaborative relationships between 
scrutiny, Cabinet and Directors whilst maintaining the independence of 
scrutiny. Earlier and more systematic involvement of portfolio holders and 
Directors would enable scrutiny to identify issues, trends, and topics 
where it can focus for accountability and impact. 

 

 Enhancement: Developing a working agreement between Members 
and Officers to strengthen collaborative relationships, clarify mutual 
expectations and manage potential areas of conflict. 

 
3. The cabinet scrutiny protocol has been developed to support this process along 

with addressing several other recommendations arising from the scrutiny 
improvement review. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
4. The purpose of the protocol is to enable Cabinet members (and senior 

officers) and the Scrutiny function to have a clear understanding of the 
expectations and behaviours of members, officers, organisations, and 
individuals engaging in the various aspects of the scrutiny process and to 
foster good working relations. 
 

13
Agenda Item 6



 

 
 

2 

5. The protocol sets how cabinet and scrutiny will work together, the 
development of the overview and scrutiny committee / commission work 
programmes, with a focus on key council priorities. Expectations of cabinet 
members / senior officers in keeping scrutiny informed of significant issues, 
and how they will participate in the scrutiny process, and in turn scrutiny 
keeping cabinet members and senior officers informed of scrutiny activity and 
findings, and how it will go about scrutiny, including reasonable notice for 
requests for information/attendance at meetings, a commitment to evidence 
based SMART recommendations. 
 

6. There will be processes that sit underneath the protocol to support agreed 
arrangements, detail to be established. The protocol was reviewed by CMT in 
October and further reviewed by CMT in April 2025. In addition, comments on 
the protocol have been sought from cabinet members and overview and 
scrutiny committee members in February and March 2025. The attached 
version of the protocol factors in comments received as part of that 
consultation process. 

 
7. The effectiveness of the protocol will be kept under review and reported 

annually through the chair of overview and scrutiny committee annual report to 
council assembly. 

 
Legal/Financial implications 
 
8. There are no specific legal / financial implications arising from this report. 
 
Consultation  
 
9. Consultation has been undertaken with CMT, cabinet members, and overview 

and scrutiny committee members. 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 

CfGS Scrutiny Improvement 
Review Report and Action Plan 
 

  

Link: Agenda for Overview & Scrutiny Committee on Wednesday 4 October 2023, 
7.00 pm - Southwark Council (See item 7) 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda 12 February 2025 
 

  

Link: Agenda for Overview & Scrutiny Committee on Wednesday 12 February 
2025, 6.30 pm - Southwark Council (see item 7) 

 

14

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=308&MId=7726&Ver=4
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=308&MId=7726&Ver=4
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=308&MId=8008&Ver=4
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=308&MId=8008&Ver=4


 

 
 

3 

 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 

Appendix 1 Cabinet Scrutiny Protocol 
 

 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Everton Roberts, Head of Scrutiny  

Report Author Everton Roberts, Head of Scrutiny 

Version Final 

Dated 28 April 2025 

Key Decision? No 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included 

Assistant Chief Executive, 
Governance and Assurance 

No No 

Strategic Director, Finance  No No 

Cabinet Member  No No 

Date final report sent to Scrutiny Team 28 April 2025 

 

15



 

 
1 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Cabinet / Scrutiny Protocol 

Background 

Purpose of protocol 

The purpose of this protocol is to enable the Cabinet (and senior officers) and the Scrutiny function 

to have a clear understanding of the expectations and behaviours of members, officers, 

organisations, and individuals engaging in the various aspects of the scrutiny process and foster 

good working relations.  

For scrutiny to be effective, the process for scrutiny needs to be managed. This protocol sets out 

the principles to be followed when engaging with the scrutiny process. 

The scrutiny function 

The provision of local authority scrutiny is established through the Local Government Act 2000 

(Executive Arrangements) and ensures that members of a local authority who are not part of a 

council’s executive can hold the executive [cabinet] to account. 

It is generally recognised that the role of local authority scrutiny is to: 

 provide constructive ‘critical friend’ challenge 

 amplify the voices and concerns of the public 

 be led by independent people who take responsibility for their role 

 drive improvement in public services and strategic decision-making 

Legislation provides scrutiny with various powers to undertake its function, including, scrutinising 

decisions the executive (cabinet) is planning to take, to call-in for scrutiny, executive decisions 

taken but not yet implemented, to compel members and officers and organisations to attend 

scrutiny meetings to answer questions on performance and decisions taken. The remit of scrutiny 

is wide ranging and covers matters that affect the authority’s area or the inhabitants of the area. 

The scrutiny members also have powers to access information beyond the general rights of access 

to information afforded to local authority councillors. 

 

 

16



 

 

 
2 

General principles, values, and behaviours 

Working together  

It is acknowledged that there are different rights and roles for the cabinet and the overview and 

scrutiny committee (and its commissions), but that both are committed to securing the best 

outcomes for people living and working in Southwark. 

It is expected that there will be: 

 frequent and honest dialogue between cabinet members and scrutiny members 

 regular discussions around the cabinet, and scrutiny work programmes 

 opportunities for scrutiny to be involved in pre-decision scrutiny, policy development and 

review 

 effective formal and informal reporting structures 

 open and transparent scrutiny, but on occasion may require operating outside of the formal 

committee meeting process if this facilitates addressing sensitive matters or enables a more 

thorough analysis or a frank exchange of views 

 Respect for the confidential nature of any exempt / confidential discussions that may take 

place 

Developing the overview and scrutiny committee / 

commission annual work programmes 

In developing the overview and scrutiny committee/commission annual work programmes, it is 

expected that scrutiny will focus on issues of concern to the community and / or matters that are 

linked to the Council’s corporate objectives. The following selection criteria will be applied when 

prioritising the content of the scrutiny work programmes: 

 matters linked to the Council’s corporate objectives (Council Delivery Plan / Southwark 2030 

Strategy) 

 is a matter of current concern 

 is not being reviewed elsewhere 

 is a matter capable of being influenced by the committee 

 is of manageable scope, and of sufficient size/importance to warrant a scrutiny review 

17



 

 

 
3 

 can be scrutinised within available resources  

In developing the work programmes, the overview and scrutiny committee and its commissions 

(through the committee chairs) will seek input from the cabinet / senior leadership on potential 

issues to be included in the work programme. The committee will also seek input from the 

opposition group, and scrutiny committee members in general. 

Once scrutiny topics have been identified by the overview and scrutiny committee and or its 

commissions, cabinet members / senior leadership (including directors) will be informed. The 

committee will consult with cabinet members / senior leadership and seek input on the 

appropriateness of the topics for scrutiny, and support with undertaking the reviews. 

The final content of the scrutiny work programmes is decided by the overview and scrutiny 

committee, and its commissions. Additional items may be added to the work programmes 

throughout the year. 

Cabinet members / senior leadership will be kept informed of scrutiny activity as reviews are 

undertaken, including information on groups being invited to submit evidence. Cabinet members / 

senior leadership should not attempt to influence that process but can assist in identifying and 

suggesting individuals / groups. 

Expectation of cabinet members / senior officers 

Cabinet members should ensure its priorities are communicated to scrutiny to inform work 

planning, so that scrutiny is adding value by focussing on key council priorities. 

Cabinet members should keep scrutiny chairs, vice-chairs and support officers informed of the 

outline of major decisions as they are being developed, to allow for discussion of scrutiny’s 

potential involvement in policy development. 

The overview and scrutiny committee and its commissions may require officers and members to 

attend and provide information required to answer questions. It is the duty of any officer or member 

to attend and answer questions (other than those which he or she would be entitled to refuse to 

answer in a court of law) if the overview and scrutiny committee and its commissions so request. In 

attending a scrutiny meeting (or providing information), cabinet members and senior officers are 

expected to prepare for the meeting as appropriate and provide information in a timely manner. 

Officers should provide all relevant information in their possession, and they should use their best 

efforts to make sure that they possess all relevant information.  

18



 

 

 
4 

Expectation of the scrutiny function  

Scrutiny members should work together with the cabinet in a non-partisan environment and adopt a 

non-adversarial but challenging approach to identify improvements. 

In inviting cabinet members / senior officers to attend scrutiny to give evidence or to provide 

information, scrutiny will make clear the reason for a request and be specific about the information 

being requested. A minimum of five clear working days’ notice will be provided, but the aim will be 

to give at least one month’s notice depending on the circumstances. 

Scrutiny members should adopt an inquisitorial (information seeking) approach to questioning 

rather than a confrontational one. They may be firm and assertive, but adopting a facilitative and 

exploratory way of working to generate an atmosphere in which members and officers can explore 

issues openly and honestly. Under no circumstance should members adopt a rude or aggressive 

style. 

Scrutiny chairs should share key findings, drafts of scrutiny reports and recommendations with 

cabinet members and officers ahead of publication to ensure accuracy and no surprises. 

Access to information 

Overview and scrutiny committee (and its commissions) will be entitled to copies of any document 

which is in the possession or control of the cabinet or its committees and which contains material 

relating to any business transacted at a meeting of the cabinet or its committees.  

Rules in relation to access to information (and limits on rights) are contained in Part 4 of the council 

constitution – ‘access to information procedure rules’ (section 24).  

Information may be shared informally with scrutiny committee members on a confidential basis 

(e.g. proposals not possible to be shared publicly). This may be to determine whether and how a 

matter should be scrutinised or as part of scrutiny of policy development.  

Scrutiny members should respect the confidential nature of information received and the 

discussions that may take place from time to time. 

Information relating to performance 

Within their terms of reference, all scrutiny committees/commissions will review and scrutinise the 

performance of the council in relation to its policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular 

service areas, and question members of the cabinet and officers about their decisions and 

performance. 

19

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=425&MId=8048&Ver=4&Info=1
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=425&MId=8048&Ver=4&Info=1


 

 

 
5 

Cabinet members / senior officers will provide scrutiny with appropriate timely information that 

enables scrutiny to undertake this function satisfactorily. 

Scrutiny may use performance data to identify issues for further scrutiny. 

Pre-decision scrutiny and involvement in policy development 

Within their terms of reference, all scrutiny committees/commissions will assist council assembly 

and the cabinet in the development of its budget and policy framework by in-depth analysis of 

policy issues. 

Individual cabinet members and scrutiny committee chairs should meet bi-annually to identify and 
plan for pre-decision scrutiny and policy development work for which all members can participate, 
noting the two common approaches to pre-decision scrutiny: 

 Immediately before the decision - scrutiny undertaken two or three weeks before the 

decision is made at Cabinet. 

 Some time before the decision - This type of scrutiny intersects with policy development and 

may be more in-depth. Its use to be reserved to major decisions and significant strategic 

matters. 

Views of the relevant cabinet member and senior officer should be sought at the start of a review to 
define the process to be followed. 

Recommendations from scrutiny 

Once it has formed recommendations on proposals for development, the overview and scrutiny 

committee or a commission will prepare a formal report for consideration by the cabinet. 

Recommendations from scrutiny will be clear, evidenced based and SMART [(s)pecific, 

(m)easurable, (a)chievable, (r)ealistic and (t)imebound)]. 

The chair of the relevant scrutiny committee/commission will be given the opportunity to present 

the scrutiny recommendations to cabinet. 

The cabinet shall consider and provide a written response to a scrutiny committee’s/commission 

report within two months. 

In responding to recommendations, the cabinet will make clear any recommendations it does not 

intend to accept and provide reasons why. 

20



 

 

 
6 

Scrutiny will monitor the implementation of agreed recommendations and use this information to 

assess impact of the scrutiny function. 

Scrutiny pre-meetings 

The overview and scrutiny committee and its commissions may arrange cross-party scrutiny pre-

meetings (to be held virtually) to coordinate activities and prepare for scrutiny meetings. This may 

involve, but not limited to, discussion on scoping and key lines of enquiry for particular topics, 

approaches to questions and evidence, briefings, and education sessions. 

Cabinet members / and senior officers may be invited to the pre-meetings as appropriate to inform 

discussion and will be expected to attend when requested. 

Scrutiny call-in 

Any five Councillors can request the call-in of an executive decision which has been made but not 

yet implemented. Decisions that have been called-in are considered by the council’s overview and 

scrutiny committee, which can recommend that a decision maker reconsider its decision. The call-

in process provides an opportunity to explore matters of concern raised around a particular 

decision. 

A separate information resource exists on the call-in process – see here. 

Compliance with this protocol 

The council’s statutory scrutiny officer will monitor compliance with the protocol in consultation with 

the monitoring officer, cabinet, overview and scrutiny members, and the senior leadership. Any 

matters arising will be reported through the overview and scrutiny committee annual report to 

council assembly. 

21

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s119984/Scrutiny%20Call-in%20-%20Guidance%20for%20Members.pdf


 

 
 

1 

 

Meeting Name: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: 
 

7 May 2025 

Report title: 
 

Work Programme 2024-25 

Ward(s) or groups affected: 
 

N/a 

Classification: Open 
 

Reason for lateness (if 
applicable):  
 

N/a 

From: 
 

Head of Scrutiny 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the overview and scrutiny committee note the work programme as at 7 May 

2025 attached as Appendix 1. 
 
2. That the overview and scrutiny committee consider the addition of new items or 

allocation of previously identified items to specific meeting dates of the 
committee. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 
3. The terms of reference for the overview and scrutiny committee are: 

 
a)  to appoint commissions, agreeing the size, composition and terms of 

reference and to appoint chairs and vice chairs 
b)  to agree the annual work programme for OSC and the commissions 
c)  to consider requests from the cabinet and/or council assembly for scrutiny 

reviews 
d)  to exercise the right to call-in for reconsideration of executive decisions 

made but not yet implemented 
e)  to arrange for relevant functions in respect of health scrutiny to be 

exercised by an overview and scrutiny committee of another local authority 
where the council considers that another local authority would be better 
placed to undertake those relevant functions, and that local authority 
agrees to exercise those functions 

f)  if appropriate, to appoint a joint overview and scrutiny committee with two 
or more local authorities and arrange for the relevant functions of those 
authorities to be exercised by the joint committee 

g)  to periodically review overview and scrutiny procedures to ensure that the 
function is operating effectively 

h)  to report annually to all councillors on the previous year’s scrutiny activity 
i)  to scrutinise matters in respect of: 

 

 the council’s policy and budget framework 

22
Agenda Item 7



 

 
 

2 

 regeneration 

 human resources and the council’s role as an employer and corporate 
practice generally 

 customer access issues, including digital strategy, information 
technology and communications 

 the council’s equalities and diversity programmes. 
 
4. The work programme document lists items which have been or are to be 

considered in line with the committee’s terms of reference. 
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
5. Set out in Appendix 1 (Work Programme) are the issues the overview and 

scrutiny committee has identified for consideration in the 2024-25 municipal 
year. 

 
6. The work programme is a standing item on the overview and scrutiny 

committee agenda and enables the committee to consider, monitor and plan 
issues for consideration at each meeting. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
agenda and minutes  
 

Southwark Council 
Website  

Amit Alva 
020 7525 0496 

Link: http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=308 
 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 

Appendix 1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2024-
25 
 

 

23

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=308


 

 
 

3 

AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Everton Roberts, Head of Scrutiny 

Report Author Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 

Version Final 

Dated 28 April 2025 

Key Decision? No 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / 
CABINET MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included 

Assistant Chief Executive, 
Governance and Assurance 

No No 

Strategic Director, Resources No No 

Cabinet Member  No No 

Date final report sent to Scrutiny Team 28 April 2025 

 
 

24



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme – 2024-25 
 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

15 July 2024 
 

 Update on delivery of the Council’s Climate 
Change Strategy and Action Plan for 
2023/24 
 

Lead member – Cllr Batteson 
Lead officer – Tony Ainge (Tom Sharland) 
 

  Report on the decision to self-refer to the 
Regulator of Social Housing regarding the 
status of the Council’s domestic electrical 
inspection condition reports 
 

Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike (Stuart Davis) 
 

  Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Commission Work Programmes for 2024/25 
 

Lead member – Cllr Wingfield 
Lead officer – Everton Roberts 
 

4 November 2024  Scrutiny Call-in – Gateway 1 Housing – 
Procurement Support and Supply Chain 
Management System 
 

Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike 
 

  Consort Estate SE15, Major Works – 
Charges to Leaseholders [Reference by 
Councillor – OSC Procedure Rule 12] 
 

Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike (Stuart Davis) 

  Financial Position: Budget Delivery and 
Future Strategy 
 

Lead member – Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Clive Palfreyman (Tim Jones) 

27 November 2024  Customer Services (considered alongside 
Digital Systems and workflows, to also 
include digital inclusion and exclusion) 

Lead member – Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Clive Palfreyman (Dominic Cain) 

25



Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

  Digital Systems and Workflows - CRM 
System for resident responses (including 
looking at how the council liaises with 
residents, and right contact first time 
(residents finding it difficult to contact the 
correct officer to deal with their issue) 
 

Lead member – Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Dionne Lowndes 

  Implementing mechanisms to enhance 
community participation in the scrutiny 
process.  
 

Lead member – Cllr Roberts / Cllr Wingfield 
Lead officer – Doreen Forrester-Brown (Everton 
Roberts) 

  Overview of the Procurement Act 2023 Lead member – Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Clive Palfreyman (Elaine McLester) 
 

8 January 2025  Policy and Resources Strategy 2025/26 
[Initial Budget Scrutiny] 
 

Lead member – Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Clive Palfreyman (Tim Jones) 

  Consort Estate SE15, Major Works – 
Charges to Leaseholders – UPDATE 

 

Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike (Stuart Davis) 

  Canada Estate /Devon Mansions Major 
Works Review (Brief update) 

Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike (Stuart Davis) 
 

  Judgement made by the Regulator of Social 
Housing - Southwark's role as a social 
landlord 
 

Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike 

  Interview with Cabinet Member for Council 
Homes, Councillor Sarah King 

Lead member – Cllr King 

26



Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

20 January 2025 
 

 Annual budget Scrutiny (daytime meeting) 
 

Lead member – Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Clive Palfreyman 
 
 

21 January 2025 
 

 Budget Scrutiny – Formulation of OSC 
recommendations to cabinet 

 

Lead member – Cllr Wingfield 
 

  Scrutiny Improvement Review 
Implementation – Update 
 
 

Lead member – Cllr Wingfield 
Lead officer – Doreen Forrester-Brown (Everton 
Roberts) 
 
 

12 February 2025  Southwark Community Safety Partnership 
Priorities and Refreshed Plan 

 

Lead member – Cllr Ennin 
Lead officer – Toni Ainge (Stephen Douglass) 
 
 

  Statement of Community Involvement and 
Development Consultation Charter 
 

Lead member – Cllr Dennis 
Lead officer – Clive Palfreyman (Juliet Seymour) 
 
 

  Scrutiny Improvement Review 
Implementation – Update 

 

Lead member – Cllr Wingfield 
Lead officer - Doreen Forrester-Brown (Everton 
Roberts) 

31 March 2025 
 

 Electrical Testing in Council Homes 
(Progress report) 

Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike 
 
 

 Governance and Oversight of Housing 
Services  

Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike 
 

27



Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 Cabinet/Senior Management Strategic 
Responsibility 

 

Lead member – Cllr Williams 
Lead officer – Althea Loderick (Chief Executive). 
 

 
7 May 2025 

 Delivering Southwark 2030 – Council 
Delivery Plan and Q3 2024/25 performance 

 

Lead member – Cllr Williams / Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Althea Loderick (Rhona Cadenhead / 
Moushumi Bhadra) 
 

 Cabinet Scrutiny Protocol Lead member – Cllr Wingfield 
Lead officer – Everton Roberts 
 

 

  

28



 

Agenda items to be scheduled 

 

Meeting (tbc) Agenda items Comment 
 

  Canada Water Estate /Devon Mansions 
Major Works Review (Final report) 

Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike (Stuart Davis) 
 

  Climate Change Strategy (Performance) Lead member – Cllr Batteson 
Lead officer – Toni Ainge (Tom Sharland) 
 

  Refresh of Procurement Framework to 
support Southwark 2030 

 

Lead member – Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Clive Palfreyman / Elaine McLester 
 

  Annual Workforce Strategy 
 

Lead member – Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Doreen Forrester-Brown (Ben Plant) 
 

  Council Homes Investment Strategy Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike (Paul Wood) 
 

  Local Community Infrastructure Levy 
Framework  

Lead member – Cllr Dennis 
Lead officer – Clive Palfreyman (Neil Kirby 
 

  Council Homes Disposal Policy 
 

Lead member – Cllr Cryan 
Lead officer – Clive Palfreyman (Stephen Platts) 
 

  Southwark New Homes Programme 
 

Lead member – Cllr Dennis 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike (Zoe Davies) 
 

29



  Housing Associations 
 

Matter to be considered by Housing Scrutiny 
Commission in the first instance. 
 

  Transparency of Leaseholder Costs Lead member – Cllr King 
Lead officer – Hakeem Osinaike 
 

  Cabinet Member Interviews 
 
Cllr Kieron Williams, Leader of the Council 
 
Cllr Jasmine Ali, Children, Education & 
Refugees 
 
Cllr Evelyn Akoto, Health & Wellbeing 
 
Cllr John Batteson, Climate Emergency, 
Jobs & Business 
 
Cllr Stephanie Cryan, Equalities, 
Democracy & Finance 
 
Helen Dennis, New Homes & Sustainable 
Development 
 
Cllr Natasha Ennin, Community Safety & 
Neighbourhoods 

 
Cllr Sarah King, Council Homes 
 
James McAsh, Clean Air, Streets & Waste 
 

To be determined (as and when appropriate). 

30



Cllr Portia Mwangangye, Leisure, Parks & 
Young People 
 
Cllr Sam Dalton, Supported Housing 
 
Cllr Emily Hickson, Green Finance 
 
Cllr Bethan Roberts, Resident Engagement 
 
Cllr Joseph Vambe, Neighbourhoods 

 

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
This page is intentionally blank. 



 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 24/25 
 

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) 
 
NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Amit Alva Tel: 020 7525 0496 

 

 

Name No of 
copies 

Name No of 
copies 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members 

 
Paper copy 
 
Councillor Suzanne Abachor 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Laura Johnson 

 
Electronic Versions (no hard copy) 
 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese 
Councillor Cassandra Brown 
Councillor Sam Foster 
Councillor Richard Leeming 
Councillor Margy Newens 
Councillor Catherine Rose 
Councillor Martin Seaton 
 
Martin Brecknell  
Jonathan Clay  
Marcin Jagodzinski 
 
 

RESERVES 
 
Councillor Rachel Bentley 
Councillor Maggie Browning 
Councillor Sunil Chopra 
Councillor Sabina Emmanuel 
Councillor Barrie Hargrove 
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Esme Hicks 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Jane Salmon 
Councillor Michael Situ 
Councillor Cleo Soanes 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
 
 

Officers 
 

Joseph Brown  – Cabinet Office 
Arthur Holmes – Cabinet Office 
 
Oliver Bradfield – Liberal Democrat 
Group Office 
 
Paper copy 
 
Sarah Feasey, Legal Department 
Amit Alva, Governance and 
Assurance (Spares) 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Total paper copies 
 
 
 
Dated: April 2025 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 
 
10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
14 

 


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Cabinet Scrutiny Protocol
	Appendix 1. Cabinet Scrutiny Protocol

	7 Work Programme
	Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2024-25 - May 2025

	 
	DistributionListOSC2024-25


